
 

 
12430790.1 

 

COMBINED QUARTERLY MEETING OF THE RETIREMENT BOARDS FOR THE 

EMPLOYEES AND RETIREES OF THE SACRAMENTO REGIONAL TRANSIT DISTRICT 

9:00 A.M., WEDNESDAY, JUNE 15, 2016  

REGIONAL TRANSIT AUDITORIUM 

1400 29
TH

 STREET, SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 
Website Address:   www.sacrt.com 

(29th St. Light Rail Station/Bus  38, 67, 68) 

 

 

MEETING NOTE: This is a joint and concurrent meeting of the five independent Retirement 

Boards for the pension plans for the employees and retirees of the Sacramento 

Regional Transit District.  This single, combined agenda designates which 

items will be subject to action by which board(s).  Members of each board may 

be present for the other boards’ discussions and actions, except during 

individual closed sessions. 

 

ROLL CALL  ATU Retirement Board:  Directors: Wiley, Morin, Niz, De La Torre  
       Alternates: Jennings, Muniz 
 
   IBEW Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Ohlson, Burdick 
       Alternates: Jennings, Gallow 
 
   AEA Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Drake, Devorak 
       Alternates: Jennings, Robison 
 
   AFSCME Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Mallonee, Hoslett 
       Alternates: Jennings, Kent 
 
   MCEG Retirement Board: Directors: Wiley, Morin, Masui, Thorn    
       Alternates: Jennings, Sanchez-Ochoa 
 

PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
At this time the public may address the Retirement Board(s) on subject matters pertaining to Retirement Board business listed on 
the Consent Calendar, any Closed Sessions or items not listed on the agenda. Remarks may be limited to 3 minutes subject to 
the discretion of the Common Chair. Members of the public wishing to address one or more of the Boards may submit a “Public 
Comment Speaker Card” to the Assistant Secretary. While the Retirement Boards encourage your comments, State law prevents 
the Boards from discussing items that are not set forth on this meeting agenda. The Boards and staff take your comments very 
seriously and, if appropriate, will follow up on them. 

  

CONSENT CALENDAR 

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

1.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the February 19, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

     

      

2. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 16, 2016 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

    

      

 

 

                                                              
Sacramento Regional Transit District 

Agenda   



 

 
12430790.1 

      

  ATUIBEWAEAAFSCMEMCEG

3. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the April 27, 2016 Special Retirement Board 
Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 

     

      

4.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 
31, 2016 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

5. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the February 19, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

    

      

6. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 16, 2016 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

    

      

7. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the April 27, 2016 Special Retirement Board 
Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 

     

      

8. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 
31, 2016 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

9. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the February 19, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

    

      

10. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 16, 2016 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

    

      

11. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the April 27, 2016 Special Retirement Board 
Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 

     

      

12. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 
31, 2016 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 

    

      

13. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the February 19, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

    

      

14. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 16, 2016 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

    

      

15. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the April 27, 2016 Special Retirement Board 
Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 

     

      

16. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 
31, 2016 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 

    

      

17. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the February 19, 2016 Special Retirement 
Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

    

      

18. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the March 16, 2016 Quarterly Retirement 
Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

    

      

19. Motion: Approving the Minutes for the April 27, 2016 Special Retirement Board 
Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 

    

      

20. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 
31, 2016 the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

    



 

 
12430790.1 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

  ATU IBEW  AEA AFSCME MCEG 

21. Information: Investment Performance Review by Met West for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Retirement Funds for the International Equity Asset Class for 
the Quarter Ended March 31, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

    

      

22. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the 
ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter 
Ended March 31, 2016 (ALL). (Bernegger)  

    

      

23. Motion: Receive and File Asset Allocation Study Review for the ATU/IBEW and 
Salaried Employees’ Retirement Plans (ALL). (Bernegger) 

    

      

24. Resolution: Adopting Revised Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy 
Guidelines for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans 
(ALL). (Bernegger) 
 

    

      

25. Resolution: Adopting Revised Policy for the Allocation of Vendor Costs (ALL). 
(Bernegger) 

    

      

26. Resolution:  Adopting Revised Policy for the Allocation of Staff Costs (ALL). (Bonnel)     

      

27. Resolution: Approving A Contract with Cheiron to Provide Actuarial Services for 
ATU, IBEW and Salaried Retirement Plans (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

28. Information:  Update on Group Trust Agreements (ALL). (Bernegger)     

      

29. Information:  Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension 
Administration (ALL). (Bonnel) 

    

      

30. Information: Staff Update on Status of Legal Services Request for Proposals (ALL). 
(Bonnel) 

    

      

      

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

ADJOURN 

 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

It is the policy of the Boards of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans to encourage participation in the meetings of the 
Boards of Directors. At each open meeting, members of the public shall be provided with an opportunity to directly address the Board on items of interest 
to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Boards.   
 

This agenda may be amended up to 72 hours prior to the meeting being held.  An agenda, in final form, is located by the front door of Regional Transit’s 
building at 1400 – 29th Street and posted to RT’s website at www.sacrt.com.  

 

Any person(s) requiring accessible formats of the agenda or assisted listening devices/sign language interpreters should contact the Human Resources 
Manager at 916-556-0280 or TDD 916/483-4327 at least 72 business hours in advance of the Board Meeting. 
 

Copies of staff reports or other written documentation relating to each item of business referred to on the agenda are on file with the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician at 916-556-0298 and/or Clerk to the Board of Directors of the Sacramento Regional Transit District and are available for public 
inspection at 1400 29th Street, Sacramento, CA. Any person who has questions concerning any agenda item may call the Human Resources 
Administrative Technician of Sacramento Regional Transit District to make inquiry. 



Item 1

1
11716923.1

Sacramento Regional Transit District
AEA Special Retirement Board Meeting

Friday, February 19, 2016
MEETING SUMMARY

ROLL CALL

The Retirement Board was brought to order at 8:35 a.m. A quorum was present comprised as
follows: Directors Wiley, Morin, Drake, Devorak, and Alternate Robison were present. Alternate
Jennings was absent.

This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District
Retirement Boards.

By AEA Resolution No. 14-12-153 for calendar year 2016, the Governing Board Member in
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.

Consent Calendar: None

New Business:

1.  Resolution: Selection of a Chair and Vice Chair to Preside over All Retirement Board
Meetings (ALL). (Bonnel)

Donna Bonnel presented Item 1 to name Andy Morin as Common Chair and Mike Wiley as
Common Vice Chair for 2016.

James Drake recognized the service of former AEA Retirement Board member Mark Bennett.
Mr. Drake also recognized Russel Devorak and welcomed new AEA Retirement Board
Alternate, Sue Robison.

Director Morin moved to adopt Item 1. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 1 was carried
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Devorak, Wiley and Morin. Noes: None.

2.  Resolution: Confirm or Adjust the Assumed Rate of Return and Assumed Inflation Rate
for Fiscal Year 2017 and Accept the 2015 Actuarial Valuation and
Experience Study Completed by Cheiron (ALL). (Bonnel)

Assistant Secretary, Donna Bonnel  introduced Graham Schmidt, from Cheiron, who provided
an overview of the Actuarial Valuation Study for Fiscal Year 2017 and presented the Actuarial
Valuation Study for 2015.

Director Morin asked if the mortality rates included in the presentation (Page 39) were RT
mortality rates. Mr. Schmidt noted that Cheiron analyzes broad tables that have been prepared
and compares those tables to Sacramento Regional Transit’s aggregate experience.



Item 1

2
11716923.1

MCEG Director Thorn asked how do the years of service factor into the calculations. Mr.
Schmidt noted that the calculations are based on averages, not on individual employees.

Director Drake asked if the changes in terminal pay take into consideration the changes is state
law. Mr. Schmidt noted Cheiron does not generally apply the terminal pay loads to PEPRA
members as they do to legacy employees.

Director Wiley asked if the changes in terminal pay take labor contracts into consideration. Mr.
Schmidt noted that if it was found that the changes applied to current employees, then an
adjustment could be made to those terminal pay assumptions.

Brent Bernegger left the room at 9:26 a.m.

Brent Bernegger returned at 9:28 a.m.

ATU Director De La Torre left the room at 9:27 a.m.

ATU Director De La Torre returned at 9:30 a.m.

Brent Bernegger left the room at 9:33 a.m.

Brent Bernegger returned at 9:34 a.m.

ATU Director Niz asked when would the final report be completed? Mr. Schmidt noted that
Cheiron is aiming for the March meeting.

Jamie Adelman presented a spreadsheet which detailed a pension investment rate of return
analysis for fiscal year 2017 budget impact. Director Wiley asked if the spreadsheet displayed
only reflected the total contribution changes comparison; it does not address the source of
where the contributions are coming from. Ms. Adelman confirmed that is correct, there is a small
employee contribution included. Director Wiley noted that moving forward, we would need to
factor in the employee contribution.

Donna Bonnel noted that we are not adopting any rates at this time. The Boards are providing
instructions to Cheiron on how they would like to see the final rates calculated.

Director Morin remarked it would appear reasonable to do a more conservative assumption of
7.5%.

ATU Director Niz remarked that the Boards should take a break to discuss these items further.
Donna Bonnel remarked that the meeting would take a five minute break at 10:01 a.m. The
meeting resumed at 10:07 a.m.

IBEW Director Ohlson provided instruction to see the final rates calculated display the assumed
rate of  interest 7.5%.

Director Wiley asked ATU and IBEW Retirement Boards their thoughts on the smoothing the
physical impact over a three to five year period. Mr. Wiley noted that the cost of this is shared;
the contribution varies.

Director Morin noted that he does not have an issue with a smoothing period but his appeal
would be to smooth over a two to three year period.



Item 1

3
11716923.1

ATU Director Niz noted that they would consider it.

Director Wiley noted he would modify his recommendation to reflect a three year smoothing
period.

AFSCME Director Mallonee provided instruction to see the final rates calculated display the
assumed rate of 7.5% and maintain the assumed rate of inflation of 3.15%. These adjustments
should be smoothed over a three-year period.

Director Drake noted that he wouldn’t oppose a smoothing period due to the impact on the
District. Director Drake provided instruction to see the final rates calculated display the assumed
rate of 7.5% and maintain the assumed rate of inflation of 3.15%. These adjustments should be
smoothed over a three-year period.

MCEG Director Thorn provided instruction to see the final rates calculated display the assumed
rate of 7.5% and maintain the assumed rate of inflation of 3.15%. These adjustments should be
smoothed over a three-year period.

The Boards provided instruction to Cheiron that the assumed rate of interest should be reduced
to 7.5% by reducing the assumed investment rate of return to 4.35% and maintaining the
assumed rate of inflation at 3.15%. However, the Boards instructed Cheiron that these
adjustments should be smoothed over a three-year period, allowing Sacramento Regional
Transit District, as Plan sponsor, the opportunity to gradually phase in adjustments to the ADC.

3.  Resolution: Receive International Fund Manager Candidate Presentations, Select
Additional International Fund Manager, and Adjust Asset Allocations to
Direct Funds to International Small Cap Market Investments (ALL).
(Bernegger)

Brent Bernegger introduced Andy Iseri from Callan Associates, Inc. (Callan) provided a detailed
review of each manager candidate and provided background on staffing, returns, investment
philosophy, risk, and other contributes.

Andy Iseri introduced Iwan Djanali Gabriel Feghali AQR Capital Management to present an
International Fund Manager search candidate presentation.

Andy Iseri  asked how many signals were used in this small-cap model. Mr. Feghali noted that
this particular stock includes about one hundred signals.

Director Wiley asked if the signals included in the categories were weighted the same. Mr.
Djanali remarked that value and momentum receive more weight.

MCEG Director Thorn asked how many stocks does the international small-cap fund hold. Mr.
Djanali remarked that AQR holds about 620 stocks.

Director Drake asked as an organization, what happens in the long run as there continues to be
pressure to keep fees low. Mr. Feghali noted that AQR is a unique culture and the environment



Item 1

4
11716923.1

is very academic. AQR believes their fees are competitive and that they will try to remain
competitive.

Brent Bernegger asked, with all of the market uncertainty, what does AQR do to protect on the
downside? AQR expectation every year is to somewhat beat the benchmark. Mr. Feghali noted
that they have diversified strategies including market mutual head funds. AQR expectation
every year is to somewhat beat the benchmark.

Andy Iseri introduced John Reifsnider and Brandon Harrell from Thomas, Siegel, & Walmsley
LLC (TS&W) to present an International Fund Manager search candidate presentation.

Brent Bernegger asked, with all of the market uncertainty, what does TS&W do to protect on the
downside? What has your history been on the downside?

Brandon Harrell noted that the most important factor in protecting from downside risk is paying
the right price to begin with. Having a broadly diversified portfolio with limited position sizes can
also assist in protecting on the downside.

AFSCME Director Hoslett left the room at 10:57 a.m.

AFSCME Director Hoslett returned at 10:57 a.m.

MCEG Director Thorn left the room at 10:58 a.m.

MCEG Director Thorn returned at 11:01 a.m.

MCEG Director Masui left the room at 11:02 a.m.

MCEG Director Masui returned at 11:04 a.m.

Andy Iseri was available to answer questions regarding the International Fund Manager
presentations.

MCEG Director Thorn asked if there is a lot of volatility in international small cap funds. Mr. Iseri
remarked that typically, international small cap are pretty stable due to many investors view it as
a long term investment.

Jamie Adelman left at 11:27 a.m.

Jamie Adelman returned at 11:29 a.m.

MCEG Director Thorn left the room at 11:33 a.m.

MCEG Director Thorn returned at 11:35 a.m.

Director Morin moved to approve the following:

RECOMMENDED ACTION

1. A.  Adopt Resolution Directing Staff to Negotiate a Contract with AQR Capital
Management to Provide International Small Cap Fund Manager Services and



Item 1

5
11716923.1

Authorizing the Sacramento Regional Transit District General Manager/CEO to Execute
Said Contract, in a Form Acceptable to Legal Counsel

AND

2. Adopt Resolution Adjusting Asset Allocation to Create New Asset Class for International
Small Cap Equity Investments and Assigning a 5% Target for the New Asset Class;
Reducing the Asset Allocation Target for International Equity Core Investments by 5%;
Redirecting a Portion of Assets Invested in SSgA MSCI EAFE Index to be Invested in
International Small Cap Equities through AQR, and Instructing the Chief Financial Officer
to Make the Necessary Related Changes to the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans

Director Wiley suggested we amend the motion to include we include that fees are not to
exceed 110 basis points.

Director Morin amended his motion to include the AQR fees are not to exceed 110 basis points.
Director Wiley seconded the motion.

Director Morin moved to  Item 1. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 1 was carried
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Devorak, Wiley and Morin. Noes: None.

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

None.

REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS

None.

With no further business to discuss, the AEA Special Meeting was adjourned by
Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 11:53 a.m.

________________________________________
James Drake, Chair

ATTEST:

Russel Devorak Secretary

By:___________________________________
Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary



Item 2 

1 
  11716923.1 
 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
AEA Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, March 16, 2016 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 

 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:01 a.m. Directors Wiley, Morin, Drake, 
Devorak, and Alternate Robison were present. Alternate Jennings was absent.  
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By AEA Resolution No. 14-12-153 for calendar year 2016, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.  
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE 
AGENDA 
 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
1.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015 Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (AEA). (Bonnel) 
 
2.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 

31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

 
3.  Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month 

Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)   
 
4.  Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 

Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

  
5.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 
 
6.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 

31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

 
7.  Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month 

Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)    
 



Item 2 

2 
  11716923.1 
 

8.  Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 
Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

 
9   Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (ATU). (Bonnel) 
 
10. Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 

31, 2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 
 
11. Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month 

Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)  
 
12. Motion:   Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 

Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees Who 
are Members of ATU/IBEW (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 

 
13. Motion:   Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (IBEW). (Bonnel) 
 
14. Motion:   Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 

31, 2015 for the ATU/IBEW Pension Plan (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger)  
 
15. Motion:   Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month 

Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 
 
   
16. Motion:   Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 

Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Employees Who 
are Members of ATU/IBEW (ATU/IBEW). (Bernegger) 

 
17. Motion:   Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (MCEG). (Bonnel) 
 
18. Motion:   Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 

31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

 
19. Motion:   Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month 

Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 
 
20. Motion:   Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 

Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

 
Donna Bonnel noted a typo on items 3, 7, 11, 15, and 19 regarding the independent auditors 
report. The issue paper(s) reference the auditors as Gilbert & Associates, the correct company 
name is Crow Horwath.    
 
Director Drake moved to adopt Items 1 through 4. Devorak seconded the motion. Items 1 
through 4 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Drake, Devorak, Wiley and 
Morin. Noes: None. 



Item 2 

3 
  11716923.1 
 

 
Director Wiley left the room at 9:04 a.m. 
 
Director Wiley returned at 9:05 a.m. 
 
 
New Business: 
 
21. Information: Investment Performance Review by JP Morgan for the ATU/IBEW and 

Salaried Retirement Funds for the International Equity Asset Class for the 
Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Brent Bernegger introduced Tess from JP Morgan, who provided the performance results for the 
quarter ended December 31, 2015 for the international emerging markets asset class and to be 
available for questions. 
 
 
22. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended December 
31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 and to be available for questions. 
 
Director Drake asked if Atlanta Capital was actually 5% positive when the target was 4% 
(Attachment 1, Page 10). Ms. Heaphy noted that they were underweighted on energy and 
utilities so that was a benefit for them.  
 
Please note that the actual return was 4.75% and the target return was 3.59%.   
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 22. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 22 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Directors Drake, Devorak, Wiley and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
23. Information: Receive Updated Information on Status of Retirement Plans Experience 

and Valuation Studies and Resulting Actuarially Determined Contribution 
Rate (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 
Donna Bonnel introduced Graham Schmidt, from Cheiron, who provided an update on the 
status of retirement plans experience and valuation studies.  
 
Based upon the information presented, Donna Bonnel noted that at the April 27 meeting, if 
everyone agrees upon the smoothing time period, the Contract Plans would instruct the District 
to have an actuarial determined contribution rate of 27.10%, beginning on July 01, 2016. The 
Salaried Plans would instruct the District to have an actuarial determined contribution rate of 
31.48%, beginning on July 01, 2016. Lastly, PEPRA members in the Salaried Plans, would have 
their contribution drop from 5.75% to 3.75% for the next fiscal year. Mr. Schmidt noted that the 
PEPRA rate only changes when the normal cost changes by more than 1% of pay.  
 
Mike Wiley asked Staff  if they have reviewed what the new rates will look like with the fiscal 
year 2017 budget. Jamie Adelman presented a spreadsheet which included the multiple 
contribution options for fiscal year 2017. 



Item 2 

4 
  11716923.1 
 

24. Information: Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension Administration 
(ALL). (Bonnel) 

 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
 
25. Information: Update on Status of Trust Document (ALL). (Bernegger) 
 
Jamie Adelman reported that the Plan document along with the Trust Document were submitted 
to the IRS by the deadline. RT estimates that it will be 18-24 to receive a final letter from the IRS 
but in that time there will likely be back and forth communications about changes.  
 
Jamie Adelman noted that Finance will be working on a Group Trust Agreement. This 
agreement will allow the Trusts to invest together but still have separate financial accountability. 
There will need to be a separation of financial record keeping for the ATU and IBEW. Since the 
inception of the Plans, ATU and IBEW have been accounted for together. During this process 
Finance will work with Actuaries, Investment Managers, and the Boards to determine how the 
assets will be split for that Plan. Since there are two separate Trust Documents and two 
separate Plan Documents, ATU and IBEW have to be split. There will be no changes to the 
Salaried Plans due their only being one Plan document and one Trust Document. Currently, 
there is no estimate the cost of a Group Trust Agreement. Deputy Chief Counsel, Olga 
Sanchez-Ochoa gave Staff and Legal Counsel, Ann Heaphy permission to work with Bernard 
Alexander with Hanson Bridgett. Ms. Heaphy and Mr. Alexander will work with State Street to 
determine how we can get the Group Trust Agreement established in time for the response from 
the IRS. Staff is in the very preliminary stages but are actively working on it. 
 
ATU Director Niz how long will it take to have a draft of the trust documents for review. Legal 
Counsel, Ann Heaphy with Hanson Bridgett noted that it will be some time before we have the 
draft trust documents. 
 
 
26. Information: Staff Update on Status of Actuary and Legal Services Request for 

Proposals (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the status of the Actuary and Legal Services request for 
proposals. 
 
The Actuary Request for Proposal was released on March 8. The pre-proposal meeting is on 
March 21 and bids are due back on April 6. The request was sent to eight proposers. 
 
The Legal RFP will be released on April 4. Pre-proposal and due dates will be established at 
that point. 
 
 
27. Information: Update on 2016 Work Plan (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valarie Weekly provided an update on the 2016 work plan. A few overpayments have been 
identified. Staff will work with the District to see how those will be handled. In the instance where 
the overpayments may be taken back from the participant, programming needs to be set up in 
the SAP system so these payments can be deducted from their checks. Also, letter notifications 
that will be sent to participants also need to be finalized.  



Item 2 

5 
  11716923.1 
 

 
Director Drake noted that he thought we previously processed some overpayments. Ms. Weekly 
and Donna Bonnel noted that we previously processed underpayments but have not yet 
processed overpayments.  
 
Ms. Weekly reported that Staff has found some issues with the Trust Documents and Plan 
Documents when administering the Plan; the language could use some clarification. Staff will 
work with the District and the District will work with the Unions to clarify new language.   
  
 
28. Information: Addition of Second Staff Member to Support Pension Plan Activities (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the addition of a second staff member to support 
Pension Plan activities. Ms. Bonnel noted that the additional staff member salary will be charged 
80% to the pension plan and 20% to the District. Ms. Bonnel also noted that as the second staff 
member comes on, a number of her tasks will be transitioned over to Ms. Weekly and Ms. 
Weekly will transfer a number of day to day tasks over to the new staff person.  
 
Director Morin asked after reviewing some comparisons of the other agency’s included in the 
Issue Paper, do any of those positions include in-house legal services? Ms. Bonnel noted that 
the information included only reflects administrative staff members.  
 
 
29. Resolution: Approving a Contract Renewal with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) 

for Fiduciary Insurance for All Retirement Boards (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an overview of the proposed contract renewal with CHUBB for Fiduciary 
Insurance. The premium amount will remain the same at $58,476.00. Legal Counsel reviewed 
the policy and confirmed that it is identical to last year’s policy. The policy will be effective from 
5/6/2016 – 5/6/2017. 
 
Ms. Bonnel also noted that the $25.00 fiduciary insurance cost must be paid by the individual, 
not by the Union.  
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 29. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 29 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote. Directors Drake, Devorak, Wiley and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
30. Resolution: Approving the First Amendment to the Agreement with Hanson Bridgett and 

Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services Under 
the Principal Agreement (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 
Donna Bonnel provided an overview of the proposed first amendment to the agreement with 
Hanson Bridgett and non-core task work orders with Hanson Bridgett for legal services under 
the principal agreement. Ms. Bonnel noted that Hanson Bridgett provides legal services to the 
Retirement Boards under a five-year agreement due to expire on June 30, 2016. The contract 
extension through September 30, 2016, is necessary to facilitate continued work on several 
ongoing and upcoming projects, including the conclusion of contract negotiations with the 
Internal Fund Manager, the actuarial RFP, the IRS determination letter process for the Trust as 
well as ongoing legal representation. The contract extension proposed is as follows: 
 



Item 2 

6 
  11716923.1 
 

Contract Extension Amount:  $60,832.68  
 

 June 2016 - $15,208.17 

 July 2016 - $15,208.17 

 August 2016 - $15,208.17 

 September 2016 - $15,208.17 
 

Staff recommends that the Boards (1) approve an amendment to the agreement between the 
Retirement Boards and Hanson Bridgett and (2) authorize the Sacramento Regional Transit 
District's General Manager/CEO to execute the amendment and take any other actions 
necessary to give effect to this action. 
 
In addition to approving the contract extension, the Boards need to consider the approval of 
Work Orders for two upcoming projects.  During 2016, Pension Plan staff will administer two key 
RFPs, one for an International Fund Manager and pending Actuary search and subsequent 
contract. The work order proposed is as follows:  
 
Work order amounts not to exceed: 
 
International Fund Manager Search - $25,000 
Actuary Request for Proposal - $25,000 
 
Total contract consideration for the 5.5 year contact not to exceed $1,100,000.00 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the Hanson Bridgett contract extension as well as 
Work Orders 8 and 9. 
 
Director Drake noted that the amendment is not included on the Resolution. The amount is 
reflected in the Issue Paper but not in the Resolution. Ms. Bonnel noted that the amendment 
has not been put through to Legal as of yet. Ms. Bonnel noted that authority can be delegated to 
the General Manager to sign the amendment and that the Work Orders are present for review 
and for all Chair Persons to sign. AEA Director Drake noted that was fine.    
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 30 as stipulated. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 
30 was carried unanimously by roll call vote. Directors Drake, Devorak, Wiley and Morin. Noes: 
None. 
 
 
31. Resolution: Election and Appointment of Governing Board Officers of the Retirement 

Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District (District) Employees who are 
members of the Administrative Employees Association Group (AEA). 
(Bonnel) 

 
Donna Bonnel presented Item 31 for approval. 
 
Director Wiley moved to approve a resolution appointing Director Drake as Chair, Director 
Devorak as Vice Chair and Director Wiley as Secretary. Director Morin seconded the motion. 
Item 31 was carried unanimously by roll call vote: Directors Drake, Devorak, Wiley and Morin. 
Noes: None. 
 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 



Item 2 

7 
  11716923.1 
 

 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
With no further business to discuss, the AEA Retirement Board meeting was adjourned 
by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 10:23 a.m. 
 
 
 

 
    ________________________________________ 
    James Drake, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Russel Devorak Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 
 



Item 3 

1 
  11716925.1 

 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
AEA Special Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, April 27, 2016 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:02 a.m. A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Wiley, Morin, Drake, Devorak, and Alternate Robison were present. Alternate 
Jennings was absent.  
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By AEA Resolution No. 14-12-153 for calendar year 2016, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.  
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
 
Consent Calendar: None 
 
 
New Business: 
 
 
1.  Resolution: Accept Experience and Actuarial Valuation Studies and Approve the 

Actuarially Determined Contribution Rate for Salaried Employees’ 
Retirement Plan for Fiscal Year 2017. (AEA/AFSCM/MCEG). (Bonnel) 

 
Donna Bonnel introduced Graham Schmidt, from Cheiron, who provided an overview of the 
Actuarial Valuation Study for Fiscal Year 2017 for Salaried Employees’.  
 
MCEG Director Thorn asked what was assumed with respect to PEPRA benefits for the Union 
plans in this analysis. 
 
Mr. Schmidt indicated that they did not. What was assumed was the ATU additional contribution 
of 3% of pay for new hires and the negotiated benefit changes for IBEW members he does not 
believe is the same multiplier as the PEPRA multiplier.  
 
Jamie Adelman asked, at what point would Mr. Schmidt recommend RT re-amortize or go into 
layered amortization?  Mr. Schmidt recommended we look at this in the next one to two years. 
  
AGM of Administration, Henry Li asked, How RT is doing in comparison to its peers regarding 
the inactive fund ratio (Attachment 1, Page 2). Are we in the mid or lower range? Mr. Schmidt 
noted that for the Union Plan is in the mid-seventies, closer to the mid-range. The Salaried Plan 
is in the sixties closer to the bottom half of the range.  
 
AGM of Administration, Henry Li asked, Year end June 30, 2015, the return on plan assets was 
2.98, the assumption was 7.65%. Why was the previous year’s performance not close to RT 



Item 3 

2 
  11716925.1 

 

goal? Mr. Schmidt remarked as Callan is not here to comment, he has little to say in regards to 
the investment of the assets.  
 
Director Wiley noted that Chair, Andy Morin is leaving at 9:30 a.m. Mr. Wiley suggested we 
move on due to time constraints in efforts to get to a vote before his exodus.  
 
Based on (1) the Experience Study and Actuarial Valuation findings, and (2) the Boards' 
instructions (including the three-year smoothing), Cheiron recommends adjusting the ADC rate 
from the FY 2016 level of 31.55%, to a FY 2017 level of 31.48% of gross Salaried payroll. 
Cheiron's recommendation is explained in greater detail in the study attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Staff recommends the Boards accept Cheiron's Experience and Actuarial Valuation studies and 
instruct the Sacramento Regional Transit District to implement the new Actuarially Determined 
Contribution rate, previously known as the Annual Required Contribution, at the levels 
established by the Boards. 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 1, with a monthly contributions to be made to the Salaried 
Employees’ Retirement Plan fund on a monthly basis in the amount of 31.48%, effective July 1, 
2016. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 1 was carried unanimously by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Directors Drake, Devorak, Wiley and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Donna Bonnel noted that we have one walk on item regarding the Actuary Request for 
Proposal. Valerie Weekly noted that the review committee has completed their evaluation and 
Cheiron was the successful bidder. Ms. Weekly noted that there was a dramatic difference in 
cost between Cheiron and the other bidder. Staff is looking at exceptions to the contract 
language and hopes to have something at the June meeting for board consideration. 
 
Ms. Bonnel also reminded board members of the $25.00 fiduciary insurance payment for May 6, 
2016 through May 06, 2017. Payments can be made to Isis in the form of cash or check. 
 
With no further business to discuss the AEA Retirement Board meeting was adjourned 
by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 9:26 a.m. 
 
 
 
 

    ________________________________________ 
    Ralph Niz, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
Corina Delatorre, Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 1 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

06/15/16 Retirement Action 04/19/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2016 for the
Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

Approved: Presented:

Final 05/31/16
Director, Finance/Treasury Senior Accountant

ISSUE

Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2016 for the Salaried
Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2016 for the
Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

FISCAL IMPACT

None.

DISCUSSION

Unaudited Financial Statements

Attached hereto are unaudited financial statements for the quarter and the year-to-date ended
March 31, 2016.  The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis and consist of a
Statement of Plan Net Position (balance sheet) (Attachment 1), a Statement of Changes in Plan
Net Position (income statement) for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 (Attachment 2), and a
year-to-date Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position (Attachment 3).

The Statement of Plan Net Position includes a summary of fund assets showing the amounts in
the following categories: cash, money market, and securities.  This statement also provides
amounts due from/to the District and Total Fund Equity (net position).

The Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position includes activities in the following categories:
investment gains/losses, dividends, interest income, unrealized gains/losses, benefit
contributions/payouts, and investment management and administrative expenses.

Asset Rebalancing

Pursuant to Section IV, Asset Rebalancing Policy of the Statement of Investment Objectives and
Policy Guidelines for the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Employees’ Retirement Funds, the Retirement
Boards have delegated authority to manage pension plan assets in accordance with the approved
rebalancing policy to the District’s Director of Finance/Treasury.  The Director is required to report
asset rebalancing activity to the Boards at their quarterly meetings.  Rebalancing can occur for
one or more of the following reasons:

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
4



REGIONAL TRANSIT ISSUE PAPER Page 2 of 2
Agenda
Item No.

Board Meeting
Date

Open/Closed
Session

Information/Action
Item

Issue
Date

06/15/16 Retirement Action 04/19/16

Subject: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended March 31, 2016
for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger)

1. The Pension Plan ended the month with an accounts receivable or payable balance due to
the District.  A payable or receivable net amount of the monthly required contribution
(required contribution is the percentage of covered payroll determined by the annual
actuarial valuation) less the Plan’s actual expenses.

2. The Pension Plan hires or removes a Fund Manager, in which case securities must be
moved to a new fund manager.

3. The Pension Plan investment mix is under or over the minimum or maximum asset
allocation as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 4 is the Salaried Plan’s Schedule of Cash Activities for the three
months ended March 31, 2016. The schedule of cash activities includes a summary of Plan
activities showing the amounts in the following categories: District’s pension contributions to the
Plan, payments to retirees, and the Pension Plan’s cash expenditures paid.  This schedule also
lists the rebalancing activity that occurred for the three months ended March 31, 2016.  The
Salaried Plan received $189,654.83 from the District as the result of the net cash activity between
the pension plan expenses and the required pension contributions.

Attached hereto as Attachment 5 is the Salaried Plan’s Asset Allocation as of March 31, 2016.
This statement shows the Salaried Plan’s asset allocation as compared to targeted allocation
percentages as defined in the Statement of Investment Objectives and Policy Guidelines.

Attached hereto as Attachment 6 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and
the ATU/IBEW and Salaried Pension Plans’ unaudited financial statements.  The reports differ in
that the unaudited financial statements reflect both investment activities and the pension fund’s
inflows and outflows. Callan’s report only reflects the investment activities.  The “Net Difference”
amounts shown are the results of Callan and State Street using different valuations for the same
securities and/or litigation settlements received by the Plans.

Included also as Attachment 7 is a reconciliation between the Callan Performance Report and the
Schedule of Cash Activities for payments made from/to the District.  Callan’s report classifies
gains from trades and litigation income as “net new investments.”  Finance staff classifies gains
from trades and litigation income in the Pension Plan’s unaudited Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Assets as “Other Income,” which is combined in the category of “Interest, Dividend,
& Other Inc”.

Attached hereto as Attachment 8 is a schedule reflecting Fund Managers’ quarterly investment
returns and their investment fees.  Additionally, the schedule reflects annual rates of return on
investment net of investment fees for the one-year and three-year periods ended March 31, 2016
as compared to their benchmarks.

Attached hereto as Attachment 9 is a schedule reflecting all retirements that occurred, as well as
any transfer of employees or plan assets from the ATU/IBEW Plan to the Salaried Plan during the
three months ended March 31, 2016.

IHumphrey
Typewritten text
 4





















Item 5 

1 
  11716924.1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
AFSCME Special Retirement Board Meeting 

Friday, February 19, 2016 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 8:35 a.m..  A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Wiley, Morin, Mallonee and Hoslett were present. Alternates Jennings and 
Kent were absent. 
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By AFSCME Resolution No. 14-12-120 for calendar year 2016, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: None 
 
 
New Business: 
 
1.  Resolution: Selection of a Chair and Vice Chair to Preside over All Retirement Board 

Meetings (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel, presented Item 1 to name Andy Morin as Common Chair and Mike Wiley as 
Common Vice Chair for 2016. 
 
AEA Retirement Board Chair James Drake recognized the service of former AEA Retirement 
Board member Mark Bennett. James Drake also recognized Russel Devorak and welcomed 
new AEA Alternate, Sue Robison. 
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 1. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 1 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, Wiley and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
2.  Resolution: Confirm or Adjust the Assumed Rate of Return and Assumed Inflation Rate 

for Fiscal Year 2017 and Accept the 2015 Actuarial Valuation and 
Experience Study Completed by Cheiron (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 
Assistant Secretary, Donna Bonnel  introduced Graham Schmidt, from Cheiron, who provided 
an overview of the Actuarial Valuation Study for Fiscal Year 2017 and presented the Actuarial 
Valuation Study for 2015. 
 



Item 5 

2 
  11716924.1 

Director Morin asked if the mortality rates included in the presentation (Page 39) were RT 
mortality rates. Mr. Schmidt noted that Cheiron analyzes broad tables that have been prepared 
and compares those tables to Sacramento Regional Transit’s aggregate experience.  
 
MCEG Director Thorn asked how do the years of service factor into the calculations. Mr. 
Schmidt noted that the calculations are based on averages, not on individual employees.  
 
AEA Director Drake asked if the changes in terminal pay take into consideration the changes is 
state law. Mr. Schmidt noted Cheiron does not generally apply the terminal pay loads to PEPRA 
members as they do to legacy employees. 
 
Director Wiley asked if the changes in terminal pay take labor contracts into consideration. Mr. 
Schmidt noted that if it was found that the changes applied to current employees, then an 
adjustment could be made to those terminal pay assumptions.  
 
Brent Bernegger left the room at 9:26 a.m. 
 
Brent Bernegger returned at 9:28 a.m. 
 
ATU Director De La Torre left the room at 9:27 a.m. 
 
ATU Director De La Torre returned at 9:30 a.m.  
 
Brent Bernegger left the room at 9:33 a.m.  
 
Brent Bernegger returned at 9:34 a.m. 
 
ATU Director Niz asked when would the final report be completed? Mr. Schmidt noted that 
Cheiron is aiming for the March meeting. 
 
Jamie Adelman presented a spreadsheet which detailed a pension investment rate of return 
analysis for fiscal year 2017 budget impact. Director Wiley asked if the spreadsheet displayed 
only reflected the total contribution changes comparison; it does not address the source of 
where the contributions are coming from. Ms. Adelman confirmed that is correct, there is a small 
employee contribution included. Director Wiley noted that moving forward, we would need to 
factor in the employee contribution.  
 
Donna Bonnel noted that we are not adopting any rates at this time. The Boards are providing 
instructions to Cheiron on how they would like to see the final rates calculated.  
 
Director Morin remarked it would appear reasonable to do a more conservative assumption of 
7.5%.  
 
ATU Director Niz remarked that the Boards should take a break to discuss these items further. 
Donna Bonnel remarked that the meeting would take a five minute break at 10:01 a.m. The 
meeting resumed at 10:07 a.m. 
 
IBEW Director Ohlson provided instruction to see the final rates calculated display the assumed 
rate of  interest  7.5%.  
 



Item 5 

3 
  11716924.1 

Director Wiley asked ATU and IBEW Retirement Boards their thoughts on the smoothing the 
physical impact over a three to five year period. Mr. Wiley noted that the cost of this is shared; 
the contribution varies.   
 
Director Morin noted that he does not have an issue with a smoothing period but his appeal 
would be to smooth over a two to three year period. 
 
ATU Director Niz noted that they would consider it. 
 
Director Wiley noted he would modify his recommendation to reflect a three year smoothing 
period. 
 
Director Mallonee provided instruction to see the final rates calculated display the assumed rate 
of 7.5% and maintain the assumed rate of inflation of 3.15%. These adjustments should be 
smoothed over a three-year period. 
 
AEA Director Drake noted that he wouldn’t oppose a smoothing period due to the impact on the 
District. Director Drake provided instruction to see the final rates calculated display the assumed 
rate of 7.5% and maintain the assumed rate of inflation of 3.15%. These adjustments should be 
smoothed over a three-year period. 
 
MCEG Director Thorn provided instruction to see the final rates calculated display the assumed 
rate of 7.5% and maintain the assumed rate of inflation of 3.15%. These adjustments should be 
smoothed over a three-year period.  
 
The Boards provided instruction to Cheiron that the assumed rate of interest should be reduced 
to 7.5% by reducing the assumed investment rate of return to 4.35% and maintaining the 
assumed rate of inflation at 3.15%. However, the Boards instructed Cheiron that these 
adjustments should be smoothed over a three-year period, allowing Sacramento Regional 
Transit District, as Plan sponsor, the opportunity to gradually phase in adjustments to the ADC. 
 
3.  Resolution: Receive International Fund Manager Candidate Presentations, Select 

Additional International Fund Manager, and Adjust Allocations to Direct 
Funds to International Small Cap Market Investments (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
  
Brent Bernegger introduced Andy Iseri from Callan Associates, Inc. (Callan) provided a detailed 
review of each manager candidate and provided background on staffing, returns, investment 
philosophy, risk, and other contributes.   
 
Andy Iseri introduced Iwan Djanali Gabriel Feghali AQR Capital Management to present an 
International Fund Manager search candidate presentation.  
 
Andy Iseri  asked how many signals were used in this small-cap model. Mr. Feghali noted that 
this particular stock includes about one hundred signals. 
 
Director Wiley asked if the signals included in the categories were weighted the same. Mr. 
Djanali remarked that value and momentum receive more weight.  
 
MCEG Director Thorn asked how many stocks does the international small-cap fund hold. Mr. 
Djanali remarked that AQR holds about 620 stocks. 
 



Item 5 

4 
  11716924.1 

AEA Director Drake asked as an organization, what happens in the long run as there continues 
to be pressure to keep fees low. Mr. Feghali noted that AQR is a unique culture and the 
environment is very academic. AQR believes their fees are competitive and that they will try to 
remain competitive.  
 
Brent Bernegger asked, with all of the market uncertainty, what does AQR do to protect on the 
downside? AQR expectation every year is to somewhat beat the benchmark. Mr. Feghali noted 
that they have diversified strategies including market mutual head funds. AQR expectation 
every year is to somewhat beat the benchmark. 
 
Andy Iseri introduced John Reifsnider and Brandon Harrell from Thomas, Siegel, & Walmsley 
LLC (TS&W) to present an International Fund Manager search candidate presentation.  
 
Brent Bernegger asked, with all of the market uncertainty, what does TS&W do to protect on the 
downside? What has your history been on the downside? 
 
Brandon Harrell noted that the most important factor in protecting from downside risk is paying 
the right price to begin with. Having a broadly diversified portfolio with limited position sizes can 
also assist in protecting on the downside.  
  
Director Hoslett left the room at 10:57 a.m. 
 
Director Hoslett returned at 10:57 a.m. 
 
MCEG Director Thorn left the room at 10:58 a.m. 
 
MCEG Director Thorn returned at 11:01 a.m. 
 
MCEG Director Masui left the room at 11:02 a.m. 
 
MCEG Director Masui returned at 11:04 a.m. 
 
Andy Iseri was available to answer questions regarding the International Fund Manager 
presentations.  
 
MCEG Director Thorn asked if there is a lot of volatility in international small cap funds. Mr. Iseri 
remarked that typically, international small cap are pretty stable due to many investors view it as 
a long term investment.  
 
Jamie Adelman left at 11:27 a.m.  
 
Jamie Adelman returned at 11:29 a.m. 
 
MCEG Director Thorn left the room at 11:33 a.m. 
 
MCEG Director Thorn returned at 11:35 a.m. 
 
Director Morin moved to approve the following: 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 



Item 5 

5 
  11716924.1 

1. A.  Adopt Resolution Directing Staff to Negotiate a Contract with AQR Capital 
Management to Provide International Small Cap Fund Manager Services and 
Authorizing the Sacramento Regional Transit District General Manager/CEO to Execute 
Said Contract, in a Form Acceptable to Legal Counsel 

 
AND 
 
2. Adopt Resolution Adjusting Asset Allocation to Create New Asset Class for International 

Small Cap Equity Investments and Assigning a 5% Target for the New Asset Class; 
Reducing the Asset Allocation Target for International Equity Core Investments by 5%; 
Redirecting a Portion of Assets Invested in SSgA MSCI EAFE Index to be Invested in 
International Small Cap Equities through AQR, and Instructing the Chief Financial Officer 
to Make the Necessary Related Changes to the Statement of Investment Objectives and 
Policy Guidelines for the Sacramento Regional Transit District Retirement Plans  

 
 
Director Wiley suggested we amend the motion to include we include that fees are not to 
exceed 110 basis points. 
 
Director Morin amended his motion to include the AQR fees are not to exceed 110 basis points. 
Director Wiley seconded the motion.  
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 1. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 1 was carried 
unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, Wiley and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None. 
 
With no further business to discuss, the AFSCME Special Meeting was adjourned by 
Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 11:53 a.m. 
 
 

 
    ________________________________________ 
    Charles Mallonee, Chair 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Rob Hoslett, Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 
 



Item 6 

1 
  11716924.1 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
AFSCME Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, March 16, 2016 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:04 a.m.  A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Morin, Mallonee, Hoslett and Alternate Kent. Director Wiley was absent. 
Alternate Hansen was absent. 
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By AFSCME Resolution No. 14-12-120 for calendar year 2015, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.    
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
None. 
 
 
Consent Calendar: 
 
5.  Motion: Approving the Minutes for the December 16, 2015  Quarterly Retirement 

Board Meeting (AFSCME). (Bonnel) 
 
6.  Motion: Receive and File Administrative Reports for the Quarter Ended December 

31, 2015 for the Salaried Pension Plan (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). 
(Bernegger) 

 
7.  Motion: Receive and File the Independent Auditor’s Report for the Twelve Month 

Period Ended June 30, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger)    
 
8.  Motion: Receive and File the Fiscal Year 2015 State Controller’s Report for the 

Retirement Plan for Sacramento Regional Transit District Salaried 
Employees (AEA/AFSCME/MCEG). (Bernegger) 

 
Donna Bonnel noted a typo on items 3, 7, 11, 15, and 19 regarding the independent auditors 
report. The issue paper(s) reference the auditors as Gilbert & Associates, the correct company 
name is Crow Horwath.    
 
Director Mallonee moved to adopt Items 5 through 8. Director Hoslett seconded the motion. 
Items 5 through 8 were carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, 
Wiley and Morin. Noes: None. 
 
Director Wiley left the room at 9:04 a.m. 
 
Director Wiley returned at 9:05 a.m. 
 



Item 6 

2 
  11716924.1 

New Business: 
 
21. Information: Investment Performance Review by JP Morgan for the ATU/IBEW and 

Salaried Retirement Funds for the International Equity Asset Class for the 
Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Brent Bernegger introduced Tess from JP Morgan, who provided the performance results for the 
quarter ended December 31, 2015 for the international emerging markets asset class and to be 
available for questions. 
 
 
22. Motion: Receive and File the Investment Performance Results for the ATU/IBEW 

and Salaried Employee Retirement Plans for the Quarter Ended December 
31, 2015 (ALL). (Bernegger) 

 
Jamie Adelman introduced Ann Heaphy and Uvan Tseng from Callan Associates, who provided 
a market overview for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2015 and to be available for questions. 
 
AEA Director Drake asked if Atlanta Capital was actually 5% positive when the target was 4% 
(Attachment 1, Page 10). Ms. Heaphy noted that they were underweighted on energy and 
utilities so that was a benefit for them.  
 
Please note that the actual return was 4.75% and the target return was 3.59%.   
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 22. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 22 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote: Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, Wiley and Morin. Noes: 
None. 
 
 
23. Information: Receive Updated Information on Status of Retirement Plans Experience 

and Valuation Studies and Resulting Actuarially Determined Contribution 
Rate (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 
Donna Bonnel introduced Graham Schmidt, from Cheiron, who provided an update on the 
status of retirement plans experience and valuation studies.  
 
Based upon the information presented, Donna Bonnel noted that at the April 27 meeting, if 
everyone agrees upon the smoothing time period, the Contract Plans would instruct the District 
to have an actuarial determined contribution rate of 27.10%, beginning on July 01, 2016. The 
Salaried Plans would instruct the District to have an actuarial determined contribution rate of 
31.48%, beginning on July 01, 2016. Lastly, PEPRA members in the Salaried Plans, would have 
their contribution drop from 5.75% to 3.75% for the next fiscal year. Mr. Schmidt noted that the 
PEPRA rate only changes when the normal cost changes by more than 1% of pay.  
 
Mike Wiley asked Staff  if they have reviewed what the new rates will look like with the fiscal 
year 2017 budget. Jamie Adelman presented a spreadsheet which included the multiple 
contribution options for fiscal year 2017. 
 
 
24. Information: Update on Roles and Responsibilities Related to Pension Administration 

(ALL). (Bonnel) 



Item 6 

3 
  11716924.1 

Donna Bonnel provided an update on the roles and responsibilities of various District staff 
members and Legal Counsel related to the administration of the Pension Plans. 
 
 
25. Information: Update on Status of Trust Document (ALL). (Bernegger) 
 
Jamie Adelman reported that the Plan document along with the Trust Document were submitted 
to the IRS by the deadline. RT estimates that it will be 18-24 to receive a final letter from the IRS 
but in that time there will likely be back and forth communications about changes.  
 
Jamie Adelman noted that Finance will be working on a Group Trust Agreement. This 
agreement will allow the Trusts to invest together but still have separate financial accountability. 
There will need to be a separation of financial record keeping for the ATU and IBEW. Since the 
inception of the Plans, ATU and IBEW have been accounted for together. During this process 
Finance will work with Actuaries, Investment Managers, and the Boards to determine how the 
assets will be split for that Plan. Since there are two separate Trust Documents and two 
separate Plan Documents, ATU and IBEW have to be split. There will be no changes to the 
Salaried Plans due their only being one Plan document and one Trust Document. Currently, 
there is no estimate the cost of a Group Trust Agreement. Deputy Chief Counsel, Olga 
Sanchez-Ochoa gave Staff and Legal Counsel, Ann Heaphy permission to work with Bernard 
Alexander with Hanson Bridgett. Ms. Heaphy and Mr. Alexander will work with State Street to 
determine how we can get the Group Trust Agreement established in time for the response from 
the IRS. Staff is in the very preliminary stages but are actively working on it. 
 
ATU Director Niz how long will it take to have a draft of the trust documents for review. Legal 
Counsel, Ann Heaphy with Hanson Bridgett noted that it will be some time before we have the 
draft trust documents. 
 
 
26. Information: Staff Update on Status of Actuary and Legal Services Request for 

Proposals (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an update on the status of the Actuary and Legal Services request for 
proposals. 
 
The Actuary Request for Proposal was released on March 8. The pre-proposal meeting is on 
March 21 and bids are due back on April 6. The request was sent to eight proposers. 
 
The Legal RFP will be released on April 4. Pre-proposal and due dates will be established at 
that point. 
 
27. Information: Update on 2016 Work Plan (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Valarie Weekly provided an update on the 2016 work plan. A few overpayments have been 
identified. Staff will work with the District to see how those will be handled. In the instance where 
the overpayments may be taken back from the participant, programming needs to be set up in 
the SAP system so these payments can be deducted from their checks. Also, letter notifications 
that will be sent to participants also need to be finalized.  
 
AEA Director Drake noted that he thought we previously processed some overpayments. Ms. 
Weekly and Donna Bonnel noted that we previously processed underpayments but have not yet 
processed overpayments.  



Item 6 

4 
  11716924.1 

 
Ms. Weekly reported that Staff has found some issues with the Trust Documents and Plan 
Documents when administering the Plan; the language could use some clarification. Staff will 
work with the District and the District will work with the Unions to clarify new language.   
 
28. Information: Addition of Second Staff Member to Support Pension Plan Activities (ALL). 

(Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided information on the addition of a second staff member to support 
Pension Plan activities. Ms. Bonnel noted that the additional staff member salary will be charged 
80% to the pension plan and 20% to the District. Ms. Bonnel also noted that as the second staff 
member comes on, a number of her tasks will be transitioned over to Ms. Weekly and Ms. 
Weekly will transfer a number of day to day tasks over to the new staff person.  
 
Director Morin asked after reviewing some comparisons of the other agency’s included in the 
Issue Paper, do any of those positions include in-house legal services? Ms. Bonnel noted that 
the information included only reflects administrative staff members.  
 
29. Resolution: Approving a Contract Renewal with Federal Insurance Company (CHUBB) 

for Fiduciary Insurance for All Retirement Boards (ALL). (Bonnel) 
 
Donna Bonnel provided an overview of the proposed contract renewal with CHUBB for Fiduciary 
Insurance. The premium amount will remain the same at $58,476.00. Legal Counsel reviewed 
the policy and confirmed that it is identical to last year’s policy. The policy will be effective from 
5/6/2016 – 5/6/2017. 
 
Ms. Bonnel also noted that the $25.00 fiduciary insurance cost must be paid by the individual, 
not by the Union.  
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 29. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 29 was 
carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, Wiley and Morin. Noes: 
None. 
 
30. Resolution: Approving the First Amendment to the Agreement with Hanson Bridgett and 

Non-Core Task Work Orders with Hanson Bridgett for Legal Services Under 
the Principal Agreement (ALL). (Bonnel) 

 
Donna Bonnel provided an overview of the proposed first amendment to the agreement with 
Hanson Bridgett and non-core task work orders with Hanson Bridgett for legal services under 
the principal agreement. Ms. Bonnel noted that Hanson Bridgett provides legal services to the 
Retirement Boards under a five-year agreement due to expire on June 30, 2016. The contract 
extension through September 30, 2016, is necessary to facilitate continued work on several 
ongoing and upcoming projects, including the conclusion of contract negotiations with the 
Internal Fund Manager, the actuarial RFP, the IRS determination letter process for the Trust as 
well as ongoing legal representation. The contract extension proposed is as follows: 
 
Contract Extension Amount:  $60,832.68  
 

 June 2016 - $15,208.17 

 July 2016 - $15,208.17 

 August 2016 - $15,208.17 

 September 2016 - $15,208.17 



Item 6 

5 
  11716924.1 

 
Staff recommends that the Boards (1) approve an amendment to the agreement between the 
Retirement Boards and Hanson Bridgett and (2) authorize the Sacramento Regional Transit 
District's General Manager/CEO to execute the amendment and take any other actions 
necessary to give effect to this action. 
 
In addition to approving the contract extension, the Boards need to consider the approval of 
Work Orders for two upcoming projects.  During 2016, Pension Plan staff will administer two key 
RFPs, one for an International Fund Manager and pending Actuary search and subsequent 
contract. The work order proposed is as follows:  
 
Work order amounts not to exceed: 
 
International Fund Manager Search - $25,000 
Actuary Request for Proposal - $25,000 
 
Total contract consideration for the 5.5 year contact not to exceed $1,100,000.00 
 
Staff recommends that the Board approve the Hanson Bridgett contract extension as well as 
Work Orders 8 and 9. 
 
AEA Director Drake noted that the amendment is not included on the Resolution. The amount is 
reflected in the Issue Paper but not in the Resolution. Ms. Bonnel noted that the amendment 
has not been put through to Legal as of yet. Ms. Bonnel noted that authority can be delegated to 
the General Manager to sign the amendment and that the Work Orders are present for review 
and for all Chair Persons to sign. AEA Director Drake noted that was fine.    
 
Director Morin moved to adopt Item 30 as stipulated. Director Wiley seconded the motion. Item 
30 was carried unanimously by roll call vote. Ayes: Directors Mallonee, Hoslett, Wiley and 
Morin. Noes: None. 
 
REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES 
None. 
 
REPORTS, IDEAS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
None. 
 
With no further business to discuss, the AFSCME Retirement Board meeting was 
adjourned by Assistant Secretary Bonnel at 10:23 a.m. 
 
 
 

    ________________________________________ 
    Charles Mallonee, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Rob Hoslett, Secretary 
 
 
By:___________________________________ 
      Donna Bonnel, Assistant Secretary 



Item 7 

1 
  11716925.1 

 

Sacramento Regional Transit District 
AFSCME Special Retirement Board Meeting 

Wednesday, April 27, 2016 
MEETING SUMMARY 

 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
The Retirement Board was brought to order at 9:02 a.m..  A quorum was present comprised as 
follows: Directors Wiley, Morin, Mallonee, Hoslett and Alternate Kent were present. Alternate 
Jennings was absent. 
 
This meeting was held as a common meeting of the five Sacramento Regional Transit District 
Retirement Boards.  
 
By AFSCME Resolution No. 14-12-120 for calendar year 2016, the Governing Board Member in 
attendance served as Common Chair of this Retirement Board meeting.   
 
 
PUBLIC ADDRESSES BOARD ON MATTERS ON CONSENT AND MATTERS NOT ON THE 
AGENDA 
 
 
Consent Calendar: None 
 
 
New Business: 
 
 
1.  Resolution: Accept Experience and Actuarial Valuation Studies and Approve the 

Actuarially Determined Contribution Rate for Salaried Employeesô 
Retirement Plan for Fiscal Year 2017. (AEA/AFSCM/MCEG). (Bonnel) 

 
Donna Bonnel introduced Graham Schmidt, from Cheiron, who provided an overview of the 
Actuarial Valuation Study for Fiscal Year 2017 for Salaried Employeesô.  
 
MCEG Director Thorn asked what was assumed with respect to PEPRA benefits for the Union 
plans in this analysis. 
 
Mr. Schmidt indicated that they did not. What was assumed was the ATU additional contribution 
of 3% of pay for new hires and the negotiated benefit changes for IBEW members he does not 
believe is the same multiplier as the PEPRA multiplier.  
 
Jamie Adelman asked, at what point would Mr. Schmidt recommend RT re-amortize or go into 
layered amortization?  Mr. Schmidt recommended we look at this in the next one to two years. 
  
AGM of Administration, Henry Li asked, How RT is doing in comparison to its peers regarding 
the inactive fund ratio (Attachment 1, Page 2). Are we in the mid or lower range? Mr. Schmidt 
noted that for the Union Plan is in the mid-seventies, closer to the mid-range. The Salaried Plan 
is in the sixties closer to the bottom half of the range.  
 


	[HB edits] SACRT 6 15 16 Quarterly Combined Agenda VW.pdf (p.1-3)
	IP #1 2-19-16 AEA Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.4-8)
	IP #2 3-16-16 AEA Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.9-15)
	IP #3 4-27-16 AEA Special Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.16-17)
	IP #4 Receive and File AEA.pdf (p.18-28)
	06-15-16 Administrative Reports - Salary.pdf (p.1-3)
	06-15-16 Administrative Reports - Salary Attachments 1-9.pdf (p.4-12)

	IP #5 2-19-16 AFSCME Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.29-33)
	IP #6 3-16-16 AFSCME Board Meeting Minutes.pdf (p.34-38)

